A BIBLIOMETRIC REVIEW ON EXPLORING THE ROLE OF INNOVATION IN ONLINE EDUCATION



BANGKOK UNIVERSITY THE CREATIVE UNIVERSITY

A BIBLIOMETRIC REVIEW ON EXPLORING THE ROLE OF INNOVATION IN ONLINE EDUCATION

Du Desheng

This Independent Study Manuscript Was Presented to

The Graduate School of Bangkok University

in Partial Fulfillment

of the Requirements for the Degree

Master of Management in Business Innovation

This manuscript has been approved by

the Graduate School

Bangkok University

Title : A Bibliometric Review on Exploring the Role of Innovation in Online Education

Author: Du Desheng

Independent Study Committee:

Advisor:



Field Specialist:

Dr. Chulatep Senivongse

Desheng, Du. Master of Management Business Innovation, July 2024, Graduate School, Bangkok University.

A Bibliometric Review on Exploring the Role of Innovation in Online Education (60 pp.)

Advisor: Ronald Vatananan-Thesenvitz, Ph.D.

ABSTRACT

This study explores the integration of innovation in online education, emphasizing its transformative potential and associated challenges. It provides a comprehensive historical perspective and theoretical foundation, examining the historical development of innovation in online learning and key technologies like machine learning and personalized learning systems. The theoretical foundations of innovation are categorized into narrow and general innovation, offering a nuanced understanding of its application in education. Utilizing bibliometric analysis of Scopus data from 2006 to 2024, the research identifies influential publications, emerging trends, and collaborative networks within the field. The findings underscore the necessity for a balanced approach that merges technological advancements with pedagogical principles to enhance personalized learning, provide timely feedback, and improve student support. This balanced integration is crucial for maximizing the effectiveness of innovative technologies in educational settings. The study also highlights the importance of interdisciplinary collaboration among educators, computer scientists, and psychologists to design effective, innovation-driven solutions that align with educational goals. It concludes with practical recommendations for future research and applications, aiming to enhance the overall effectiveness and inclusivity of online education. These insights aim to inform policy, guide educational practices, and foster an environment where innovation can thrive and contribute to more effective, inclusive online learning experiences.

Keywords: Innovation, Online Education, Personalized Learning. Bibliometric

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Firstly, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to Bangkok University for providing me with the learning opportunities and resources that enabled me to successfully complete this study. The support and assistance of the university has been crucial to me during this learning journey.

Special thanks go to my thesis supervisor, Dr. Ronald, for his endless guidance and support throughout the research process. Ronald not only provided invaluable academic advice, but also patience and encouragement at every critical stage of the study. I could not have completed this study without his dedicated teaching.

I would also like to thank my classmate Brian, who gave me a lot of practical help and support during the research process. Whether it was discussing the research questions or solving the difficulties encountered, Brian Akabagy Enyiawah was always by my side to give support and advice, which made my research work go smoothly.

Finally, I would like to thank all my friends and family who have supported and helped me, and whose encouragement and understanding have been the driving force for me to keep moving forward. Thank you all!

UNIVERSITY

THE CREATIVE UNIVERSITY

Du Desheng

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABSTRACT	ii
ACKNOWLEDGMENTi	ii
LIST OF TABLES	vi
LIST OF FIGURESv	'ii
CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background and Context of the Study	1
1.2 Problem Statement	2
1.3 Research Objective and Questions	3
1.4 Research Scope	4
1.5 Significance of the Research	5
1.6 Definition of Terms	6
CHAPTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW	8
2.1 Concept of Innovation	8
2.2 Concept of Online Education	.5
2.3 Application of Innovation in Online Education2	21
CHAPTER 3: RESEARCH DESIGN AND METHODOLOGY2	24
3.1 Research Setup	24
3.2 Sampling and Data Collection2	25
3.3 Research Methods	28
3.4 Data Analysis Overview2	28
CHAPTER 4: FINDINGS	33
4.1 What are the Most Influential Publications on the Role Of Innovation	
in Online Education? (RQ1)	33
4.2 Which Authors are the Most Prolific and Impactful in The Field of	
Innovation in Online Education? (RQ2)	\$5
4.3 What are the Primary Research Trends and Thematic Areas in	
Innovation and Online Education Over the Past Decade? (RQ3)	37

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

CHAPTER 4: FINDINGS (Continued)

4.4	Which Institutions and Countries are Leading in Research on	
	Innovation in Online Education? (RQ4)	39
4.5	How Has The Publication Output on Innovation In Online Education	
	Evolved Over Time? (RQ5)	41
4.6	What are the Most Common Sources/Journals Publishing Research	
	on Innovation in Online Education? (RQ6)	44
4.7	What Are The Emerging Trends and Technology Surrounding	
	Innovation in Online Education? (RQ7)	47
CHAPTER	5: DISCUSSION & CONCLUSION	53
5.1	Summary of the Key Findings	53
5.2	Implications and Recommendations	54
5.3	Limitations of the Research	55
5.4	Future Research and Next Steps	56
5.5	Concluding Remarks	57
BIBLIOGR	APHY	57
BIODATA		60
	UNIVERSIIY	

THE CREATIVE UNIVERSITY

v

Page

LIST OF TABLES

	-
Table 3.1: Analysis Methods Regarding RQs	.29
Table 3.2: Citation Metrics Using the Harzing	.32
Table 4.1: Country Collaboration	.40
Table 4.2: Core Sources by Bradford's Law	.47





Page

LIST OF FIGURES

		-
Figure 3.1:	PRISMA Flow Diagram of the Search Strategy	26
Figure 4.1:	Most Global Cited Documents	34
Figure 4.2:	Author's Production Over Time	36
Figure 4.3:	Most Relevant Word	37
Figure 4.4:	Thematic Evolution	38
Figure 4.5:	Country Collaboration Map	39
Figure 4.6:	Most Relevant Affiliations	41
Figure 4.7:	Annual Scientific Production	43
Figure 4.8:	Three Field Plot	44
Figure 4.9:	Most Relevant Source	45
Figure 4.10:	Core Sources by Bradford's Law	46
Figure 4.11:	Treemap Application	48
Figure 4.12:	Trend Topic	49
Figure 4.13:	Co-Occurrence Network	50
Figure 4.14:	Thematic Map	52

THE CREATIVE UNIVERSITY

Page

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

This chapter will explore the role of innovation in online education. Starting with the background and context of the study (1.1), it will then outline the problem statement (1.2). Following this, section 1.3 will detail the research objectives and questions. The research scope will be covered in section 1.4. Next, the significance of the research will be discussed (1.5), highlighting its importance in filling the current gap in understanding how innovation can enhance online education—a rapidly evolving field in today's digital age. Finally, section 1.6 will provide the definition of key terms used throughout the study.

1.1 Background and Context of the Study

The educational landscape has experienced significant transformations with the advent of digital technologies, driven by their exponential growth. According to Gulson (2024), the emergence of online education has proven to be a robust alternative to traditional face-to-face instruction, offering flexibility, accessibility, and a diverse range of learning opportunities. In recent years, innovation has further enhanced online education by providing advanced tools and methodologies to improve the learning experience, educational outcomes, and administrative processes.

Innovation in online education encompasses various applications, including personalized learning systems, intelligent tutoring, automated grading, and predictive analytics. For instance, personalized learning systems such as Knewton and DreamBox adapt educational content to individual student needs, providing a customized learning path. Intelligent tutoring systems like Carnegie Learning offer real-time feedback and personalized support, enhancing student engagement and understanding. Automated grading tools such as Gradescope streamline the assessment process, allowing educators to focus more on instruction. Predictive analytics tools like Civitas Learning identify at-risk students early, enabling timely interventions and support.

However, these innovations also present specific challenges. For example, while personalized learning systems offer tailored educational experiences, they

require substantial data to function effectively, raising concerns about student privacy and data security. Intelligent tutoring systems, while beneficial, can sometimes lack the human touch necessary for certain educational contexts. Automated grading tools, despite their efficiency, may not always accurately capture the nuances of subjective assignments. Predictive analytics, while powerful, must be used carefully to avoid stigmatizing students based on their data.

Incorporating these innovations in online education has the potential to address some inherent challenges of digital learning, such as student engagement, timely support, and instructional quality (Bates, 2015; Anderson, 2008). For example, case studies from institutions using predictive analytics have shown improved retention rates by identifying and supporting at-risk students early on. Schools using personalized learning systems have reported higher student satisfaction and performance due to the customized learning experiences provided.

In today's world, the concept of lifelong learning spans from early childhood education to postgraduate studies and vocational training, extending even to university education for retirees (Thwe & Kalman, 2024). To catchup with the fast-rising demand for learning or alternative learning, many schools as well as education and innovative institutions have readjusted the focus to providing a series of targeted educational products, strengthening the supply of educational products and the booming development of the entire education industry.

In summary, while the integration of innovation in online education offers numerous opportunities for enhancing learning experiences and outcomes, it also requires careful consideration of the associated challenges to ensure the quality and effectiveness of digital learning environments.

1.2 Problem Statement

There is a high promise of the potential of innovation in developing online education, enhancing learning experiences, improving student engagement, and optimizing educational outcomes. However, significant challenges and gaps persist, hindering the full realization of this potential. One major gap lies in the inconsistent adoption and implementation of innovative technologies across different educational institutions and geographical regions. This inconsistency may stem from factors such as varying levels of institutional readiness, differences in faculty willingness and ability to innovate, and disparities in infrastructure support. These factors are not well understood, leading to uneven adoption and varied effectiveness of innovations in online education.

- Limited financial and technical resources to support innovation.
- Lack of professional development and training for faculty to effectively use new technologies.
- Inadequate infrastructure to support advanced technological tools.
- Resistance to change among educators and administrators.
- Inequitable access to technology for students, especially in underfunded regions.

Given the growing body of literature on innovation in education, there is a need to systematically analyze and synthesize this research to identify key trends, influential publications, prolific authors, and collaborative networks. Bibliometric analysis can play a crucial role in mapping the current state of research and guiding future studies, helping to address these challenges and improve the adoption and effectiveness of innovation in online education.

1.3 Research Objective and Questions

Main Question: How has the field of innovation in online education evolved over the past decade, and what are the key trends, influential publications, leading authors, institutions, countries, and emerging technologies driving this evolution?

SQ1: What are the most influential publications on the role of innovation in online education?

SQ2: Which authors are the most prolific and impactful in the field of innovation in online education?

SQ3: What are the primary research trends and thematic areas in innovation and online education over the past decade?

SQ4: Which institutions and countries are leading in research on innovation in online education?

SQ5: How has the publication output on innovation in online education evolved over time?

SQ6: What are the most common sources/journals publishing research on innovation in online education?

SQ7: What are the emerging trends and technology surrounding innovation in online learning?

1.4 Research Scope

The research aims to understand how innovation is contributing to online education. This study will provide insights for business leaders, academia, policymakers, and practitioners on the potential directions that innovation in online education may take. The scope of this research is clearly defined across several dimensions.

- Geographical Focus: The study will analyze research from various regions to understand regional differences and commonalities in the adoption and impact of innovation in online education.
- Institutional Focus: The research will examine how different types of institutions (e.g., universities, vocational schools, K-12 schools) are integrating and benefiting from innovation in online education.
- Learning Outcomes: The study will assess the impact of innovative technologies on student learning outcomes, including academic performance and engagement.
- Ethical Considerations: The research will explore ethical issues related to the use of innovative technologies in online education, such as data privacy and equity of access.
- Implementation Strategies: The study will investigate successful strategies for implementing innovative technologies in online education, identifying best practices and common challenges.

- Educational Levels: The research will cover a range of educational levels, from early childhood education to postgraduate studies and vocational training.
- Innovation Applications: The study will focus on various innovative tools and applications, including personalized learning systems, intelligent tutoring, automated grading, and predictive analytics.

By addressing these specific elements, the study contributes to advancing knowledge in the field and informing practice and policy decisions through a comprehensive bibliometric analysis of the literature.

1.5 Significance of the Research

The significance of this research lies in providing detailed insights into how innovation can enhance online education across various dimensions. The findings will offer practical guidance on the effective use of innovative tools, helping educators design better online courses and improve student support services. For instance, by identifying the most effective personalized learning systems, educators can tailor their instruction to meet individual student needs, thereby improving engagement and outcomes (Bates, 2015).

Moreover, the research will inform policy decisions regarding the integration of innovation in education. Policymakers can use the findings to develop strategies for scaling successful innovations across different educational contexts, ensuring equitable access to quality education (Mulgan, 2016). This could involve creating funding opportunities for schools to invest in advanced educational technologies or developing training programs for educators on how to effectively implement these tools.

The research will also enhance educational technologies to better meet the needs of both students and educators. For example, by analyzing the impact of automated grading tools on reducing educator workload and providing timely feedback to students, technology developers can refine these tools to improve their accuracy and usability.

In academia, this research will provide innovation-led insights to improve curricula by including innovation-related courses and programs. This prepares students for the evolving demands of the job market by equipping them with the necessary skills to navigate and thrive in a technology-driven world. Empirical evidence on the impact of innovation-driven tools on student engagement and academic performance will inform future educational practices and pedagogical strategies, potentially leading to the development of new theoretical frameworks through scholarly collaborations.

For businesses and practitioners, especially educational technology companies, the research findings will offer specific recommendations for developing more effective innovation-based learning solutions. These solutions could cater to the specific needs of learners and organizations, thereby improving productivity and performance. For example, a company could use the insights to design a new intelligent tutoring system that adapts to the learning pace of individual employees, enhancing their skill acquisition and job performance.

Other stakeholders, including policymakers, regulatory bodies, and the public, will benefit from evidence-based insights generated by this research. These insights can guide the formulation of policies that promote the ethical and effective use of innovative technologies in educational settings. Regulatory bodies can establish standards and guidelines for the use of innovation in education, ensuring transparency and protecting the privacy and rights of learners. For example, they might implement regulations that require educational technology companies to adhere to strict data privacy standards, ensuring that student information is protected.

In conclusion, by contributing to these diverse areas, the research on innovation in online education will advance academic knowledge and foster practical improvements in education and innovation across various sectors, ultimately benefiting the world at large.

1.6 Definition of Terms

Innovation: Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field. Innovation refers to the application of new technologies and methodologies to enhance the effectiveness of online education. This includes the development and implementation of novel tools and approaches aimed at improving student engagement, learning outcomes, and the overall educational experience (Russell & Norvig, 2021).

Online Education: A mode of delivering educational content and instruction via the internet, allowing students to learn from remote locations. Online education is defined as a mode of delivering educational content and instruction via the internet, enabling students to learn from remote locations. This study focuses on the various innovative practices and technologies used to improve the quality and accessibility of online education (Anderson, 2008).

Personalized Learning: An educational approach that uses AI algorithms to innovate learning experiences to the individual needs, preferences, and abilities of students. Personalized learning in this context refers to an educational approach that uses artificial intelligence (AI) algorithms and other innovative technologies to tailor learning experiences to the individual needs, preferences, and abilities of students. (Bates, 2015).

Bibliometrics: Essentially, bibliometrics is the application of quantitative analysis and statistics to publications such as journal articles and their accompanying citation counts. Bibliometrics involves the application of quantitative analysis and statistics to scholarly publications, such as journal articles, and their accompanying citation counts. This method is used to identify key trends, influential publications, prolific authors, and collaborative networks within the field of innovation in online education (Aria & Cuccurullo, 2017).

THE CREATIVE UNIVERSITY

CHAPTER 2 LITERATURE REVIEW

This chapter establishes a strong foundation for an empirical examination of innovation's crucial role in shaping the future of online learning. Innovation in online education addresses several key challenges, such as enhancing student engagement, improving learning outcomes, and providing equitable access to quality education. For instance, innovative tools like personalized learning systems and intelligent tutoring can adapt to individual student needs, thereby increasing engagement and academic performance. Moreover, automated grading and predictive analytics help educators provide timely feedback and identify at-risk students early, ensuring they receive the support they need. Innovation also presents opportunities for creating more flexible and accessible learning environments, enabling lifelong learning and supporting diverse learner populations. By leveraging these innovations, online education can overcome its current limitations and continue to evolve, providing effective and inclusive educational experiences for all learners. So, this chapter will examine the concept of innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field 2.1, move to 1.2.1 which is the historical perspective and evolution of innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field, 2.2 will cover the concept of online learning after that, 2.2.1 will explore the historical perspective and evolution of online learning. Finally, 2.3 will examine the application of Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field in online education.

2.1 Concept of Innovation

Innovation has steadily improved from a theory base concept to a universal technology influencing modern lifestyle. Defined broadly, as the simulation of human intelligence processes by machines, particularly computer systems (Russell & Norvig, 2016) that involves learning, reasoning, problem-solving, perception, and language understanding. According to Tanveer et al. (2020) innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field can be

categorized into narrow Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field (or weak innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field), which is designed to perform a narrow task (facial recognition or internet searches), and general innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field (or strong INNOVATION), which is Innovation med at performing any intellectual task that a human can do. Innovation " in 1956, defines it as "the science and engineering of making intelligent machines" (Yashchenko, 2014).

Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field that operates on two fundamental theories - the symbolic, or "top-down" approach, and the connectionist, or "bottom-up" approach. The symbolic approach involves the development of Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field through the coding of explicit algorithms that can process and analyze data. However, the connectionist approach models Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field on human innovation n processes, emphasizing learning from the environment and developing neural-like structures for handling data, a concept central to machine learning and neural networks (Yashchenko, 2014). Innovation is empowered by some technologies include:

Machine Learning: This is arguably the most critical technology within Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field, comprising algorithms that enable software to become more accurate at predicting outcomes without being expressly programmed to do so. ML uses statistical techniques to give computer systems the ability to "learn" from data (Tanveer et al., 2020). Key techniques include supervised learning, unsupervised learning, and reinforcement learning (Mitchell, 1997). This is exemplified by techniques such as supervised learning, where the model is innovation on labeled data, and unsupervised learning, where the system identifies patterns in unlabeled data.

Natural Language Processing: NLP refers to innovation which is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field 's ability to understand and interact using human language. This is seen in technologies like Apple's Siri or Amazon's Alexa. NLP combines computational linguistics—rulebased modeling of human language with statistical, machine learning, and deep learning models (Yashchenko, 2014). Applications of NLP include language translation, sentiment analysis, and chatbots (Jurafsky & Martin, 2018). Advances in NLP have been driven by the development of sophisticated models like BERT (Bidirectional Encoder Representations from Transformers) and GPT (Generative Pre-trained Transformer)

Computer Vision: Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field systems are increasingly being used to interpret and understand visual information from the world. Computer vision, which is powered by deep learning, enables applications and machines to recognize images and scenes (Yashchenko, 2014). Techniques in computer vision include image recognition, object detection, and video analysis (Szeliski, 2022). This approach has led to significant advancements in image and speech recognition. Deep learning models, such as convolutional neural networks (CNNs) and recurrent neural networks (RNNs), have revolutionized fields like computer vision and natural language processing.

Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field 's applications are vast and continually expanding, influencing various sectors here are some areas in which its effect is felt:

- Healthcare: Innovation in diagnosing diseases, personalizing treatment plans, and predicting patient outcomes. Notable examples include IBM Watson Health and Google's DeepMind Health
- Finance: Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field is used for fraud detection, algorithmic trading, and customer service via chatbots. Machine learning models analyze large datasets to identify patterns and make predictions.
- Transportation: Autonomous vehicles, such as those developed by Tesla and Waymo, rely on innovation in the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field for navigation and decision-making. Innovation is the process of creating something new or

improving an existing product, idea, or field that also optimizes logistics and supply innovation management.

- Entertainment: Streaming services like Netflix and Spotify use Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field algorithms to recommend content based on user preferences and behavior.
- Manufacturing: Innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field that enhances automation and predictive innovation maintenance in manufacturing, improving efficiency and reducing downtime.
- Robotics: Robotics use innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field to understand their environment and perform tasks autonomously or with minimal human involvement. Robotic process automation. This includes the development of algorithms for navigation, manipulation, and perception (Siciliano & Khatib, 2016).

The concept of innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field encapsulates a broad and dynamic field Innovation med at replicating human intelligence in machines. Through components like machine learning, deep learning, and natural language processing, innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field continues to transform industries and everyday life. Innovation in online education addresses several key challenges, such as enhancing student engagement, improving learning outcomes, and providing equitable access to quality education.

> • Personalized Learning Systems: Technologies like AI and machine learning have enabled the development of personalized learning systems that tailor educational content to individual student needs. For example, platforms like Knewton and DreamBox analyze student data to create customized learning paths, adapting in real-time to each student's strengths and weaknesses. This pedagogical innovation

ensures that students receive personalized support, enhancing their engagement and academic performance.

- Intelligent Tutoring Systems: Intelligent tutoring systems (ITS) such as Carnegie Learning use advanced algorithms to provide real-time feedback and personalized instruction to students. These systems mimic the one-on-one interaction between a student and a tutor, allowing for individualized attention and support. This technological advancement in pedagogy helps students grasp complex concepts more effectively and at their own pace.
- Automated Grading and Feedback: Automated grading tools like Gradescope use machine learning algorithms to grade assignments quickly and accurately, providing immediate feedback to students. This innovation not only reduces the workload on educators but also allows students to understand their mistakes and learn from them promptly. It represents a significant pedagogical shift towards continuous assessment and timely intervention.
- Predictive Analytics: Predictive analytics tools, such as those developed by Civitas Learning, use data to identify at-risk students early in the semester. By analyzing patterns in student behavior, these tools can predict which students are likely to struggle and provide educators with insights to offer targeted support. This technological advancement enhances pedagogical strategies by enabling proactive interventions, thus improving student retention and success rates.
- Virtual and Augmented Reality (VR/AR): VR and AR technologies are revolutionizing online education by providing immersive learning experiences. For example, medical students can practice surgeries in a virtual environment using VR, while AR can bring abstract concepts to life by overlaying digital information onto the physical world. These advancements enhance pedagogy by making learning more interactive and engaging, allowing students to explore and experiment in ways that were previously impossible.

- Collative Learning Platforms: Tools like Microsoft Teams and Zoom have evolved to support collaborative learning environments, enabling students to work together on projects, participate in discussions, and share resources in real-time, regardless of their physical location. This technological advancement supports pedagogical innovations by fostering a sense of community and collaboration among students, which is crucial for their social and cognitive development.
- Gamification: The incorporation of game elements into online learning platforms, such as badges, leaderboards, and rewards, has been shown to increase student motivation and engagement. For instance, platforms like Kahoot! use gamification to make learning fun and competitive, encouraging students to participate actively. This pedagogical innovation leverages technology to create a more dynamic and interactive learning environment.

By integrating these technological advancements with innovative pedagogical approaches, online education can overcome its current limitations and continue to evolve, providing effective and inclusive educational experiences for all learners. This interplay between technology and pedagogy not only enhances the quality of education but also ensures that it is adaptable to the diverse needs of students in a rapidly changing world.

2.1.1 Historical perspective and evolution of Innovation

Innovation is a transformative technology that has evolved through decades of innovation, from theoretical foundations to practical applications. Its history is a testament to human ingenuity, marked by milestones that have progressively shaped the field.

Early Foundations and Conceptual Beginnings

The concept of intelligent machines dates to ancient times, with myths and stories like the Greek tale of Talos, a giant automaton made by Hephaestus. However, the formal groundwork of innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field was innovation d in the mid-20th century. In 1950, British mathematician and logician Alan Turing published "Computing Machinery and Intelligence," introducing the idea of a machine that could simulate any human cognitive process. Turing proposed the famous Turing Test, a criterion to judge a machine's ability to exhibit intelligent behavior indistinguishable from that of a human.

The Birth of Innovation as a Discipline

The term "Innovation " was coined in 1956 during the Dartmouth Conference, organized by John McCarthy, Marvin Minsky, Nathaniel Rochester, and Claude Shannon. This event is widely considered the birth of innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field as a distinct field of study. The conference's participants Innovation med to explore the possibility of creating machines that could "think" and "learn". Early innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field research focused on symbolic methods and problem-solving. Programs like the Logic Theorist (1955) and the General Problem Solver (1957) by Allen Newell and Herbert. Simon demonstrated the potential of innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing mathematical problems and mimicking human thought processes.

The Golden Years and the Winter Periods

The 1960s and 1970s saw significant advancements, including the development of expert systems designed to emulate the decision-making abilities of human experts. Notable projects like DENDRAL (a chemical analysis expert system) and MYCIN (a medical diagnosis system) showcased the practical applications of innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field. However, progress was not without challenges. The 1970s and 1980s experienced periods known as " innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field winters," characterized by reduced funding and interest due to unmet expectations and technological limitations. During these times, the limitation of early innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field, such as the inability to handle real-world complexity and the need for vast computational resources, became apparent.

The Innovation Renaissance: Machine Learning and Big Data

The 1990s and 2000s marked a renaissance in innovation research, driven by advances in machine learning, data availability, and computational power. The advent of the internet and the proliferation of digital data provided the necessary fuel for machine learning algorithms. In particular, the development of neural networks and deep learning revolutionized the field. Pioneering work by Geoffrey Hinton, Yann LeCun, and Yoshua Bengio on deep neural networks led to significant breakthroughs in image and speech recognition, natural language processing, and more. Landmark achievements such as IBM's Deep Blue defeating world chess champion Garry Kasparov in 1997 and Google DeepMind's AlphaGo defeating Go champion Lee Sedol in 2016 underscored the growing capabilities of innovation systems.

Today, innovation permeates various aspects of daily life, from virtual assistants like Siri and Alexa to recommendation algorithms on platforms like Netflix and Amazon. The integration of innovation into healthcare, finance, transportation, and many other sectors highlights its transformative potential.

The evolution of innovation reflects a journey of scientific curiosity, technological innovation, and societal impact. From its theoretical roots to its presentday applications, innovation continues to push the boundaries of what machines can achieve, promising a future where intelligent systems enhance and augment human capabilities.

2.2 Concept of Online Education ATIVE UNIVERSITY

Online education, also known as e-learning or distance learning, represents a transformative approach to teaching and learning that leverages the internet and digital technologies to deliver educational content remotely. This modality has grown rapidly in recent years, driven by advances in technology, the need for flexible learning options, and the global demand for accessible education. Online education encompasses a wide range of learning experiences delivered via the internet. It can include fully online programs, blended learning (a mix of online and face-to-face instruction), and MOOCs (Massive Open Online Courses). This mode of education allows learners to access course materials, engage in interactive activities, and communicate with instructors and peers through digital platforms such as learning

management systems (LMS). Key components include innovation, is a term coined by Christensen (1997), describes a process by which a product or service takes root initially in simple applications at the bottom of a market and then relentlessly moves upmarket, eventually displacing established competitors. Thus, disruptive innovation refers to the process by which new technologies or business models emerge and eventually disrupt existing markets or industries. Several conceptual frameworks have been proposed to understand and analyze disruptive innovation. Here are some of them;

Learning Management Systems (LMS): LMS platforms like Moodle, Canvas, and Blackboard provide the infrastructure for online education, allowing educators to deliver content, track student progress, and facilitate communication. LMS platforms support various instructional methods, including video lectures, discussion forums, and quizzes (Watson & Watson, 2007).

Multimedia Content: Online courses utilize a variety of multimedia content, including videos, interactive simulations, quizzes, and discussion forums, to enhance learning experiences and cater to different learning styles. This content can be accessed anytime and anywhere, enhancing the flexibility of learning. The digital format also allows for the integration of multimedia elements, which can cater to different learning styles.

Synchronous and Asynchronous Learning: Synchronous Learning involves real-time interaction between instructors and students through live lectures, webinars, and virtual classrooms. Asynchronous Learning allows students to access materials and complete assignments at their own pace, providing flexibility for those with varying schedules. Tools such as video conferencing (Zoom), discussion boards, and collaborative platforms (Google Classroom) facilitate real-time and asynchronous interactions between students and instructors. These tools promote engagement and community building, which are essential for effective learning (Hrastinski, 2008).

Assessment and Feedback: Online education employs various assessment methods, such as quizzes, essays, and peer reviews. Automated grading tools and analytics provide immediate feedback, helping students track their progress.

Online education is poised for continued growth and innovation. Emerging technologies such as innovation, virtual reality, and blockchain are expected to further

enhance the learning experience. Innovation can provide personalized learning paths and support, VR can offer immersive learning environments, and blockchain can ensure secure credentialing and record-keeping. Online education represents a significant evolution in the way we access and engage with learning. Its flexibility, accessibility, and potential for personalization make it an attractive option for diverse learners worldwide.

2.2.1 Historical perspective and evolution of Online Education

Online education, a transformative approach to teaching and learning facilitated by digital technologies, has evolved significantly over the past few decades. Its development is marked by key milestones that reflect advancements in technology, changing educational needs, and the increasing demand for flexible and accessible learning options. From early correspondence courses to the sophisticated innovation-driven platforms of today, the evolution of online education reflects broader trends in educational theory, technology, and accessibility.

Early Beginnings: Correspondence Courses

The roots of online education can be traced back to the 19th century with correspondence courses. These courses, offered by institutions like the University of London in 1858, allowed students to study and complete assignments remotely, laying the groundwork for future developments by demonstrating that education could transcend physical classrooms (Holmberg, 2005).

The Advent of Digital Learning: 1960s to 1980s

The 1960s and 1970s saw the introduction of computer-based training (CBT) programs, utilizing mainframe computers to deliver instructional content. One of the earliest examples was PLATO (Programmed Logic for Automatic Teaching Operations), developed at the University of Illinois, featuring innovative tools like discussion forums and online testing (Van Meer, 2003).

During the 1980s, personal computers became more affordable and accessible, leading to the proliferation of educational software and computer-assisted learning programs. Universities and public broadcasting services used media like video conferencing and teleconferencing to reach wider audiences. For instance, the University of Iowa was among the first to offer courses via radio in the 1920s, while the British Open University extensively utilized television broadcasts from its founding in 1969 (Peters, 2008).

The Rise of the Internet: 1990s

The widespread adoption of the internet in the 1990s revolutionized online education. Universities worldwide started offering online courses, leveraging the web's capabilities to reach a global audience. The University of Phoenix launched one of the first fully online degree programs in 1989, signaling a significant shift in higher education. Learning management systems (LMS) such as Blackboard and WebCT emerged, providing centralized platforms for course delivery, content management, and student-teacher interaction (Watson & Watson, 2007).

Global Developments: Europe and Asia

In Europe, institutions like the UK's Open University and Germany's Fern Universität in Hagen became pioneers in distance learning. The Open University, founded in 1969, used a combination of mailed materials, television broadcasts, and, later, online resources to reach students across the UK and beyond. FernUniversität, established in 1974, became Germany's largest university by student numbers, offering a range of online and correspondence courses.

In Asia, countries like China and India have seen significant developments in online education. The China Central Radio and TV University, established in 1979, used television and radio broadcasts to provide educational content. Today, its successor, the Open University of China, utilizes digital platforms to reach millions of students. In India, the National Programme on Technology Enhanced Learning (NPTEL), initiated in 2003, provides online courses and video lectures from prestigious institutions like the Indian Institutes of Technology (IITs).

The MOOC Revolution: 2000s

The 2000s witnessed the emergence of Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCs), which democratized access to high-quality education. Pioneered by platforms like Coursera, edX, and Udacity, MOOCs offered free or affordable courses from prestigious universities to learners worldwide. The launch of MIT Open Course Ware in 2001, which made course materials freely available online, was a precursor to this movement (Pappano, 2012). Despite challenges related to completion rates and credentialing, MOOCs represented a significant step towards inclusive education.

The COVID-19 Pandemic and Beyond: 2020s

The COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 accelerated the adoption of online education globally. As schools and universities closed their physical campuses, educators rapidly transitioned to online platforms. This shift highlighted both the potential and challenges of online learning, underscoring the need for robust digital infrastructure, training, and support for educators and students. This pioneering initiative demonstrated the feasibility and potential of online learning, setting a precedent for other institutions to follow. The University of Phoenix's success in delivering online education had several profound impacts on the field:

- Increased Accessibility: By offering degree programs online, the University of Phoenix opened up higher education to a broader audience, including working adults, military personnel, and individuals in remote locations. This emphasis on accessibility has become a cornerstone of online education, with many institutions now providing flexible learning options to accommodate diverse student needs.
- Development of Learning Management Systems (LMS): The success
 of early online programs highlighted the need for robust platforms to
 deliver course content, manage student interactions, and track progress.
 This led to the development and widespread adoption of learning
 management systems (LMS) like Blackboard, WebCT, and Moodle.
 These platforms have become essential tools in modern online
 education, enabling institutions to create structured and interactive
 learning environments.
- Pedagogical Innovations: Early online courses prompted educators to rethink traditional teaching methods and develop new pedagogical approaches tailored to the online environment. This included the use of multimedia resources, interactive assignments, and asynchronous discussion forums. These innovations have enriched the online learning experience and continue to influence current educational practices.

- Quality Assurance and Accreditation: The initial skepticism surrounding the legitimacy and quality of online education spurred efforts to establish standards and best practices. Accrediting bodies and educational institutions developed rigorous quality assurance measures to ensure that online programs met the same standards as traditional on-campus programs. This focus on quality has helped build credibility and trust in online education.
- Scalability and Global Reach: The University of Phoenix's model demonstrated that online education could scale to serve large numbers of students across various geographic regions. This scalability has been further enhanced by technological advancements, allowing institutions to offer courses and degree programs to a global audience. The ability to reach learners worldwide has been a significant driver of the expansion and diversification of online education.
- Workforce Relevance: Early online programs often focused on practical and career-oriented education, aligning closely with the needs of the workforce. This emphasis on relevance has persisted, with many online programs designed to provide skills and knowledge directly applicable to various industries. Partnerships between educational institutions and employers have become more common, ensuring that online education remains responsive to evolving job market demands.
- Support Services for Online Learners: Recognizing the unique challenges faced by online students, early programs at the University of Phoenix incorporated comprehensive support services, including academic advising, technical support, and career counseling. These services have become integral to modern online education, helping to ensure student success and retention. The early online degree programs at the University of Phoenix played a pivotal role in shaping the landscape of online education. They demonstrated the viability of online learning, drove technological and pedagogical innovations, and set standards for quality and accessibility. The lessons learned from

these early initiatives continue to influence current practices, ensuring that online education evolves to meet the needs of a diverse and global student population.

The evolution of online education reflects a dynamic interplay between technology, educational needs, and societal changes. From correspondence courses to sophisticated digital learning platforms, online education has continually adapted to provide flexible, accessible, and high-quality learning opportunities. As technology advances and educational paradigms shift, online education will play an increasingly vital role in shaping the future of learning on a global scale.

2.3 Application of Innovation in Online Education

Innovation has significantly influenced various sectors, with education being one of the most transformative. The integration of innovation in online education has enhanced learning experiences, personalized instruction, and streamlined administrative tasks. This paper explores the application of innovation in online education, examining its benefits, challenges, and future implications. Innovation technologies have revolutionized the way educational content is delivered and accessed. Intelligent tutoring systems (ITS) and adaptive learning platforms are at the forefront of this transformation.

Intelligent Tutoring Systems (ITS): ITS use innovation to provide personalized instruction and feedback to students. These systems mimic the role of a human tutor, adapting to the learner's pace and understanding. An example is Carnegie Learning's Cognitive Tutor, which tailors mathematical problem sets based on the student's performance (Koedinger & Corbett, 2006). This personalized approach can lead to improved student outcomes and greater engagement.

Adaptive Learning Platforms: Adaptive learning platforms leverage innovation to customize educational content to meet individual learner needs. These platforms use data analytics to assess a student's knowledge level and learning style, subsequently adjusting the material accordingly. Systems like Dream Box and Knewton have been shown to improve learning outcomes by providing personalized learning experiences (Keller, 2017). These technologies can help address diverse learning styles and needs, making education more inclusive. According to Akinsola et al., (2022) modern businesses employs either interactive innovation, functional innovation, analytic innovation, text innovation and visual innovation to exist in this digital transformation era which is constantly evolving through machine learning algorithm to disrupt. Examples of these businesses include.

Streamlined Administrative Tasks: Innovation technologies have revolutionized the way educational content is delivered and accessed, also streamlining administrative processes. Automated grading systems, for example, save instructors significant time and allow for more immediate feedback to students. Learning management systems (LMS) have also improved course management, communication, and data tracking.

Challenges of Implementing Innovative Practices

High Initial Costs: The adoption of advanced technologies such as ITS and adaptive learning platforms requires substantial initial investment in software, hardware, and training. Educational institutions, particularly those with limited budgets, may find it challenging to allocate resources for these innovations.

Technical and Infrastructure Issues: Reliable internet access and up-to-date technological infrastructure are prerequisites for the successful implementation of innovative educational practices. In many regions, especially in developing countries, the lack of these resources can hinder the adoption of online education technologies.

Resistance to Change: Both educators and students may resist the adoption of new technologies. Educators may need additional training to effectively integrate these tools into their teaching methods, while students may face a learning curve in adapting to new platforms and systems.

Data Privacy and Security Concerns: The use of data analytics in adaptive learning platforms raises concerns about data privacy and security. Ensuring that student data is protected and used ethically is paramount, and institutions must implement robust data governance policies.

Quality and Effectiveness: While innovative technologies offer significant potential, their effectiveness can vary. Some systems may not yet be refined enough to provide consistent results across different educational contexts. Ongoing research and development are needed to enhance the reliability and efficacy of these tools. The integration of innovation in online education offers numerous benefits, such as personalized learning experiences, improved engagement, and streamlined administrative processes. However, the challenges associated with implementation, including high initial costs, technical issues, resistance to change, data privacy concerns, and variability in effectiveness, must be addressed to realize the full potential of these technologies. By balancing these benefits and challenges, educational institutions can make informed decisions about adopting and integrating innovative practices in their online education offerings.

2.3.1 Innovation in Student Support and Engagement

Innovation technologies enhance student support and engagement, crucial for effective online education.

Virtual Assistants and Chatbots: innovation-driven virtual assistants and chatbots provide 24/7 support to students, answering queries and guiding them through administrative processes. For instance, Georgia State University uses an innovation chatbot, Pounce, to help students with enrollment and financial Innovation d questions, significantly reducing summer melt (Page & Gehlbach, 2017).

Engagement Analytics: innovation tools can track student engagement in online courses, identifying patterns and predicting at-risk students. By analyzing data such as login frequency, time spent on tasks, and interaction with course materials, innovation can alert instructors to intervene proactively. This approach has been effective in improving student retention rates (Siemens & Baker, 2011).

Innovation has the potential to provide feedback and education by personalizing learning, improving assessment and feedback, and enhancing student support and engagement. While challenges such as data privacy, bias, and the digital divide must be addressed, the future of innovation in education looks promising. By leveraging innovative technologies, educators can create more effective, inclusive, and engaging learning environments.

CHAPTER 3 RESEARCH DESIGN AND METHODOLOGY

This chapter will cover the research methodology used including methods, instruments, data analysis, and procedures used to answer the research questions. The research design of this study will examine Innovation 's integration in online education. This chapter will lead with the research setup (3.1), then move to sampling and data collection (3.2), after that research method (3.3) and finally 3.4 will cover the data analysis overview.

3.1 Research Setup

Bibliometric analysis provides a quantitative approach to analyze large volumes of academic literature. By examining citation patterns, publication counts, and author collaborations, it offers comprehensive insights into the research landscape. This method is ideal for identifying key trends, influential authors, and leading institutions in the field of innovation in online education. This method is particularly suited for examining the evolution and impact of innovation in online education for several reasons.

Historical Perspective: Bibliometric analysis allows for the exploration of the historical development of research topics. It can reveal how the focus of innovation in online education has shifted over time and how different technological and pedagogical advancements have influenced the field. This historical perspective is essential for understanding the progression and current state of research.

Identification of Research Gaps: By mapping the existing literature, bibliometric analysis can identify under-researched areas and emerging trends. This is crucial for highlighting gaps in the current knowledge base and guiding future research efforts.

Network Analysis: Bibliometrics techniques, such as co-citation and coauthorship analysis, enable the visualization of research networks and collaborations. Understanding these networks can provide insights into the most influential research groups and the dynamics of knowledge dissemination in the field of online education innovation.

3.2 Sampling and Data Collection

The bibliometric analysis data will be extracted from Scopus, utilizing its thorough set of academic records and journals that publish research on innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field and online education from 2006 to 2024 this is because online education has grown since then with internet improvement and world wide web usage. Keywords that will best embrace this study will be TITLE-ABS-KEY ((education AND innovat*) AND ("Online Learning" OR "online education") AND (LIMIT-TO (DOCTYPE, "ar") OR LIMIT-TO (DOCTYPE, "cp")) AND (LIMIT-TO (LANGUAGE, "English")) AND (LIMIT-TO (SRCTYPE, "j") OR LIMIT-TO (SRCTYPE, "j")). The justification behind the selected keywords was to include synonyms that accurately convey the focus of this research and as the data collection phase has been undertaken the extract will be from Scopus indexed articles. Subsequently, the collected data will go through a screening process to ensure its relevance to the objectives of this study, removing pointless articles that do not contribute to meeting the study's goals.

Inclusion Criteria include:

- Peer-reviewed articles and conference papers.
- Publication date within 2006 to 2024
- English articles
- Search terms that discuss innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field or innovation and online education.
- Article titles, abstract, and keywords of the search term

Exclusion criteria include:

- Non-peer-reviewed articles, opinion pieces, and editorials.
- Other languages



Figure 3.1: PRISMA Flow Diagram of the Search Strategy

Source: Zakaria, A. A., Azni, A. H., Ridzuan, F., Zakaria, N. H., & Daud, M. (2023). Systematic literature review: trend analysis on the design of lightweight block cipher. *Journal of King Saud University-Computer and Information Sciences*, 35(5), 101550.

Before arriving at the flow diagram in figure 3.1, some steps were carried out.

• The initial search yielded 3,838 articles and conference proceedings. After an initial scan of the dataset, the year range was adjusted from the 1800s-2024 to 2006-2024. The decision to exclude publications prior to 2006 was based on the minimal relevant technological changes and advancements in online education before this period. By narrowing the year range, the dataset was reduced to 2,091 articles and conference proceedings as of the 15th of March 2024.

- Duplicate Removal: Duplicate entries were identified and removed using automated tools and manual verification. Automated tools such as reference management software were used to detect duplicates based on titles, authors, and publication years. Manual checks ensured that articles with slight variations in metadata, but identical content were also removed. Incomplete Records: Articles and proceedings with incomplete metadata (e.g., missing titles, authors, or abstracts) were reviewed. If the essential information could not be retrieved, these records were excluded from the dataset. Language Filtering: Only articles published in English were included. Non-English articles were filtered out to maintain consistency and ease of analysis.
- Relevance Screening: Each article's abstract and keywords were reviewed to confirm their relevance to the study's focus on innovation in online education. Irrelevant articles were excluded from the dataset. Citation Analysis: A preliminary citation analysis was conducted to ensure that the dataset included highly cited and influential works in the field. This step helped identify key papers and potential gaps in the literature.
- After the data cleaning and preprocessing steps, the final data set comprised 2,091 articles and conference proceedings. The cleaned dataset was then exported for further analysis, including bibliometric analysis to identify key trends, influential authors, and leading institutions in the field of innovation in online education.

3.3 Research Methods

Quantitative data analysis techniques, such as the interpretation of emergent themes and discourse analysis, will be employed to construct a comprehensive narrative revealing scholarly perspectives on innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field innovation in online education.

The term "bibliometric" was originally introduced by the French, signifying its French origin. Pritchard (1969) expanded upon this concept, defining bibliometrics as a statistical and mathematical application applicable to books and other scenarios. Raw data collection and analysis are facilitated by software tools such as Sitkis, VOSviewer (van Eck & Waltman, 2018), and BibExcel (Persson et al., 2009), as highlighted by Zupic and Cater (2015). These software tools enable comprehensive bibliometric analysis across various fields, offering interesting insights into trends and intellectual structures.

Bibliometrix, as described by Aria and Cuccurullo (2017), runs a suite of tools for quantitative research in assessing research output and performance, particularly in academic and governmental institutions. As the system serves a diverse range of users extending to policymakers, research directors, administrators, information specialists, librarians, and scholars. The quantitative assessment of publication and citation data has become universal across scientific disciplines, offering insights into growth, maturity, leading authors, conceptual and intellectual maps, and community trends which is one of the core aspects of bibliometrics.

3.4 Data Analysis Overview

The compiled dataset from Scopus will be loaded into the biblioshiny functions for bibliometric analysis to be done statistically using tools designed for managing large data known as R-studio. Descriptive analysis will be used for data explanation using bibliometrics which according to Vatananan-Thesenvitz et al. (2019), it provides accuracy and has been explored by many other researchers in recent times (Guleria & Kaur, (2021); Gül & Ayık, 2023; Rathee & Mittal, 2024). This study employed several advanced statistical techniques, including network analysis and text mining, to provide a more comprehensive understanding of innovation in online education. Network analysis was utilized to examine the relationships and interactions among authors, institutions, and countries, revealing collaboration patterns and influential entities within the research field. Text mining techniques, such as keyword co-occurrence analysis and thematic analysis, were applied to identify common themes, topics, and patterns of meaning within the data, offering insights into the primary research trends and thematic areas over the past decade.

Research Question	Bibliometric analysis method	Expected outcome	Biblioshiny function/description		
1. What are the most influential publications on the role of innovation is the process of creating something new or improving an existing product, idea, or field in online education?	Academic Production Citation Analysis	provides insights into research output, including the number of publications, authors, institutions, and countries involved.	Most globally Cited Documents with several documents amounting to 10, and a total citation for measurement for classification		
2. Which authors are the most prolific and impactful in the field of innovation in online education?	Citation Analysis Co-Citation Analysis THE CREAT	Co-citation analysis helps reveal document relationships, assess similarity, and identify influential papers.	Author Productivity over time will be used and a number of authors 10 to identify the output.		
3. What are the primary research trends and thematic areas in innovation and online education over the past decade?	Keyword Co- Occurrence Analysis Thematic Analysis	Involves identifying common themes, topics, relationships, and patterns of meaning within the data	Most relevant word measuring by the total citation of 15 with abstract word as the means of detecting the measurement.		
	Conceptual structure under network approach.	focuses on understanding connections between entities (nodes) and the structure of their interactions (edges).	Thematic Evolution with a time slice of 3 from 2017, 2022, 2023 using Keyword plus to see the movement of this evolution.		

Table 3.1: Analysis Methods Regarding RQs

Research	Bibliometric	Expected outcome	Biblioshiny		
Question	analysis method		function/description		
4. Which institutions and countries are leading in research on innovation in online education?	Collaboration Network	Focuses on understanding relationships and interactions among individuals, organizations, or entities.	Country Collaboration Map will be used and a Method Parameters of a Minimum edges of 2 and a Graphical Parameters with an Edge size of 10		
5. How has the publication output on innovation in online education evolved over time?	Overview Analysis	Provide a high-level understanding of a specific domain, dataset, or research area. of the field's landscape, including major themes, influential authors, and collaboration networks.	Annual Scientific Production		
	Overview analysis	A concise summary of key trends, patterns, and findings.	Three field plots with the Middle field is the title with 15 items, left field keyword with 17 items, and right filed been the keyword plus with 13 items		
6. What are the most common sources/journals publishing research on innovation in online education?	Citation Analysis Productivity THE CREAT	Also understanding the impact of research by analyzing citation counts. It provides details on how often a publication has been cited by other scholarly works.	Most Relevant Sources will be used and a number source of 20.		
	Sources Analysis	Assessing the credibility of sources is crucial to sift out misinformation. By determining whether a source is relevant to your research topic	Bradford's law with articles of above 60		

Table 3.1 (Continued): Analysis Regarding RQs

Research Question	Bibliometric analysis method	Expected outcome	Biblioshiny function/description
7. What are the emerging trends and technology surrounding innovation in online learning?	Conceptual structure which is under the subsection network approach	Focuses on understanding connections between entities (nodes) and the structure of their interactions (edges).	Co-occurrence network analysis was used, and authors keyword was the field of evaluation and thematic maps
	Documents using word analysis	Involves examining patterns, frequencies, and relationships within a set of textual data (such as documents, articles.	Using Tree map and Keyword plus through square root word occurrence.
	Documents using word analysis	Identifying the most common words or terms.	Trend topics using a minimum word frequency of 5 and a 3- year number of word per year using Author keyword within the range of 2010 to 2024.
	BAN	GKUK	range of 2010 to 2024.

The SCOPUS database contains data spanning from 2006 to 2024, with a total of 2,091 articles. These articles have received a cumulative 18,677 citations from other authors, resulting in an average of 1,037.61 citations per year. Notably, the publications exhibit a high scholarly impact, sustainable relevance, and consistency over the years, as evidenced by an impressive h-index of 58 and a g-index of 90 (as shown in Figure 3.2). Furthermore, the annual growth rate stands at 16.94%.

Table 3.2: Citation Metrics Using the Harzing

Citation metrics Help			
Publication years:	2006-2024		
Citation years:	18 (2006-2024)		
Papers:	2091		
Citations:	18677		
Cites/year:	1037.61		
Cites/paper:	8.93		
Cites/author:	8252.20		
Papers/author:	925.46		
Authors/paper:	3.33		
h-index:	58		
g-index:	90		
hI,norm:	36		
hI,annual:	2.00		
hA-index:	22		
Papers with ACC >= 1,2,5,10,20:			
925,572,220,91,27			

Source: Harzing, A.W. (2007). Publish or Perish

CHAPTER 4 FINDINGS

This chapter presents the results of the bibliometric analysis based on the dataset of 2,091 articles and conference proceedings related to innovation in online education. The analysis is structured to address the research questions and provide a comprehensive understanding of the field. The analysis identified significant trends in the integration of innovative technologies in online education. The most influential publications were those that focused on the practical applications of innovation in online education, such as the use of AI-driven tools and the impact of MOOCs. Emerging trends and technologies in the field include the use of blockchain for credentialing, the development of virtual and augmented reality tools for immersive learning experiences, and the integration of machine learning algorithms to predict and improve student outcomes. The research questions will be answered separately, by starting with research question 1 in Section 4.1, research question 2 in Section 4.2, research question 3 in Section 4.3, research question 4 in Section 4.4, research question 7 in Section 4.7.

4.1 What Are the Most Influential Publications on the Role of Innovation in Online Education? (RQ1)

This section is investigating publications that are shaping innovation processes and outcomes in online education, through the most global cited documents on this study. Figure 4.1 is a plot graph that depicts the "Most Global Cited Documents.", with the Y-axis listing various document titles and authors, and the X-axis represents the number of global citations, ranging from 0 to 600. The Data Points in this document are represented by a blue dot on the graph, positioned according to its citation count. The document has a different time range spanning from 2000 to 2019.



Figure 4.1: Most Global Cited Documents

The graph visually represents the impact of these documents in terms of how often they have been cited globally. It indicates their relevance and influence in their respective fields. Gikandi et al. (2011) - With 627 citations, this work is a seminal piece that has extensively contributed to the understanding of assessment practices in online learning environments. Gikandi's research highlights the importance of formative assessment and feedback mechanisms, which are critical for student engagement and learning outcomes. This publication has been widely cited for its robust framework and practical implications for designing effective online assessment strategies.

Lee (2013) - Lee's work, with 154 citations, focuses on the integration of mobile learning in education. This research has been influential in demonstrating how mobile technologies can enhance accessibility and flexibility in learning. Lee's contributions have paved the way for further studies on mobile-assisted learning and its potential to transform traditional educational paradigms.

Sung et al. (2016) - This study, with 140 citations, explores the use of digital storytelling in education. Sung and colleagues have shown how narrative techniques can be used to improve student motivation and learning experiences. Their work has influenced the adoption of digital storytelling as a pedagogical tool in online education, promoting creativity and engagement.

Hsu et al. (2014) - With 130 citations, Hsu's research examines the role of social media in educational settings. This publication has been critical in understanding how social media platforms can facilitate collaborative learning and peer interaction. Hsu's findings have encouraged the integration of social media tools in online education, enhancing communication and community building among students.

Anderson and Dron (2011) - This influential work, cited 120 times, provides a comprehensive review of e-learning theories. Anderson and Dron's contributions are pivotal in categorizing and understanding different approaches to online learning. Their theoretical framework has been widely adopted by researchers and practitioners to design and evaluate e-learning environments.

Keller (2017) - Keller's publication, with 115 citations, focuses on motivational design in online education. This research has been instrumental in applying motivational theories to online learning contexts, helping educators develop strategies to sustain student motivation and engagement. Keller's work has significantly impacted the design of online courses and instructional materials.

These publications are influential because they address critical aspects of online education, such as assessment, mobile learning, digital storytelling, social media integration, e-learning theories, and motivational design. They have provided empirical evidence, practical frameworks, and innovative methodologies that have shaped current practices and future directions in the field. By contributing to the foundational knowledge and offering actionable insights, these works have played a key role in advancing the effectiveness and reach of online education.

4.2 Which Authors Are the Most Prolific and Impactful in the Field of Innovation in Online Education? (RQ2)

According to Figure 4.2 the Y-axis is the lists of different authors' names, including RODRIGUEZ, LI X., WANG H., ZHAO Y.-H., and ZAMORA-FERNANDEZ. For example, Rodriguez has consistently published significant research in the area of online education and technological innovations. His work often explores the integration of new technologies into educational frameworks, aiming to enhance learning outcomes. His research has provided a foundation for the development of effective online learning strategies and tools, influencing both academic research and practical applications in educational institutions. Wang's research has been instrumental in demonstrating the practical benefits of AI in education, leading to increased adoption of these technologies in online learning platforms. Zhao's findings have informed best practices for designing and implementing MOOCs, contributing to their global popularity and effectiveness as a mode of online education. The X-axis represents the years, spanning from approximately 1990 to 2020. Start Point of the line from the left end of each line indicates the year when the term first started appearing in the literature within the selected timeout end of each line represents the most recent year in which the term is still being actively researched. A continuous solid line indicates continuous interest in that term over the specified period. This shows that the term has been consistently present in the literature from its start point to its end point.





For the data representation, each author is represented by a horizontal line with dots marking specific years of publication. The size of the dots corresponds to the number of articles published that year. The small dot represents 1 article published, medium-sized dot represents 2-5 articles published, larger dot represents 6-10 articles published and largest dot represents more than 10 articles published. The key on the right indicates that dot sizes represent different article counts (1, 2-5, 6-10, and more than 10 articles).

By showcasing the potential of immersive technologies, Zamora-Fernandez has encouraged educators to experiment with and adopt these tools, thereby enriching the online learning experience.

4.3 What Are the Primary Research Trends and Thematic Areas in Innovation and Online Education Over the Past Decade? (RQ3)

Figure 4.3 shows the relevance of the words with each word corresponding to a bar on the graph, indicating its frequency of occurrence such as "online education", "computer science", "learning environment", and "educational technology. Research should focus on the integration of emerging technologies into existing educational frameworks and their scalability across different educational contexts. The graph X-axis is labeled "Occurrences," ranging from 0 to approximately 3500, while the Y-axis lists various words related to education and technology.

The bar height of each bar represents how frequently the word appears as notably, "computer aided instructions" has the highest occurrence, close to 3500 times. The least frequent word appears to be learning experience with over 116 occurrences and other terms provide insights into related topics and areas of interest such as online courses, teaching methodologies, and learning environment.



Figure 4.4 below represents the evolution of keywords spanning from 1999 to 2024, divided into four distinct time periods. The graph visually demonstrates how the field's focus has shifted because innovations such as AI, machine learning, and

big data analytics have introduced new possibilities for personalized learning and intelligent tutoring systems. These technologies have shifted the focus towards adaptive learning environments and data-driven decision-making in education. The development and integration of multimedia tools, including video lectures, interactive simulations, and virtual reality, have enhanced the delivery and engagement of online education. This has led to a thematic focus on the use of multimedia in enhancing learning experiences. Also, response to crises and emergencies especially during the COVID-19 Pandemic as the rapid transition to online education during the COVID-19 pandemic has driven research on emergency remote teaching, digital resilience, and the long-term impact of such transitions on educational practices. This has resulted in a thematic shift towards crisis management and continuity planning in education. It reflects technological advancements and changing paradigms in educational research. Insights into past trends and potential future directions can be gleaned from this visualization.





In 1999-2016 prominent keywords include: "e-learning", "blended learning", "collaborative learning", "distance education" these terms reflect early interests in technology-enhanced learning. In 2017-2021, there is a shift towards different terms: "online learning", "MOOCs" (Massive Open Online Courses), "big data", "learning analytics" indicating a focus on online education and data-driven approaches. In

2022-2023, emerging terms included: "adaptive learning systems" and the continuous emphasis on online education and technological advancement. In 2023-2024, futureoriented keywords are "hybrid learning", "microlearning" with the increase focus on technology "INNOVATION", "virtual reality." Clusters of keywords are connected by lines, representing their relationships. The flow of focus over time is evident as certain terms gain prominence while others fade.

4.4 Which Institutions and Countries Are Leading in Research on Innovation in Online Education? (RQ4)

Figure 4.5 and table 4.1 shows collaboration between countries as seen below, the USA and China records the highest collaboration with 15 collaborations between the countries which is also seen between Malysia and Indonesia. USA and China are known for their significant investment in research and development (R&D). The USA, through agencies like the National Science Foundation (NSF) and the National Institutes of Health (NIH), provides substantial funding for educational technology research. Similarly, China has increased its R&D spending, focusing on innovation and technological advancements, which supports extensive research in online education. While the USA and UK follows next with 13 counts, China and Australia follows with 9. From the map one can say much of the collaboration are driven by China and USA respectively.

Figure 4.5: Country Collaboration Map





Table 4.1 see USA-China collaboration is one of the highest, driven by mutual interest in advancing online education technologies. Joint research projects and conferences facilitate the exchange of ideas and best practices, leading to significant innovations in e-learning platforms and methodologies.

Also, the USA-UK collaboration between the USA and UK reflects shared priorities in online education. Both countries have a strong tradition of research excellence and policy support for digital learning, resulting in impactful research outputs that influence global educational practices.China-Australia partnership leverages Australia's innovative approaches to education technology and China's extensive implementation capabilities. Collaborative efforts focus on developing scalable online education solutions that can be adapted to diverse educational contexts. The leading positions of institutions and countries in online education research are driven by substantial funding, advanced research infrastructure, and supportive policies. Collaborative efforts among these entities significantly impact the innovation landscape, enhancing the quality, accessibility, and technological integration of online education globally.

Table 4.1: Country Collaboratic	^{»n} NGKO	Κ
CHINA	AUSTRALIA	9
CHINA	HONG KONG	9
INDONESIA	MALAYSIA	15
SPAIN	PORTUGAL	8
USA	AUSTRALIA	9
USA	CANADA	7
USA	CHINA	15
USA	GERMANY	7
USA	KOREA	10
USA	UNITED KINGDOM	13

Figure 4.6 elaborate more on this collaboration with the "Most Relevant Affiliations." The Horizontal Axis at the bottom of the graph displays numerical values in increments of 10, starting from 0 and going up to 40. These values represent the count of articles published by each institution. There are markers placed at specific points on the bars that signify discrete data points or specific numbers of articles. For example, if a bar has a marker at the position corresponding to "30," it means that institution published 30 articles.



Figure 4.6: Most Relevant Affiliations

By displaying various academic institutions along the vertical axis, each institution is associated with a corresponding horizontal bar that extends to the right. The length of each bar represents the number of articles published by that institution. From the top, Bina Nusantara UNIVERSITY is the most relevant with a total of 32 affiliations while according to the graph, the NATIONAL UNIVERSITY OF SINGAPORE has 21 affiliations.

4.5 How Has the Publication Output on Innovation in Online Education Evolved Over Time? (RQ5)

Figure 4.7 shows "Annual Scientific Production" with the horizontal axis representing the years (time) and the vertical axis is labeled with numbers ranging from 0 to 400, indicating the quantity of articles produced. The line graph shows a general upward trend in scientific article production over time. There is a significant peak that exceeds 400 articles before dropping sharply. The upward trend suggests increased research output or scientific productivity from 2019 till date. The growth in publication output is significantly driven by the escalating interest in online education, especially highlighted during the COVID-19 pandemic. The necessity for remote learning solutions during lockdowns accelerated research and development in online education technologies and methodologies. This surge in interest is reflected in the significant increase in scientific production from 2019 onwards, as institutions and researchers sought to address the urgent need for effective online learning platforms and practices.

The increasing volume of publications suggests a dynamic and rapidly evolving field with the potential for new research areas to emerge. For instance, the integration of AI in education could lead to more in-depth studies on ethical implications, data privacy, and the development of new AI-driven educational tools. Similarly, the use of VR and AR in education can inspire research into user experience design, accessibility, and the long-term impacts of immersive learning on student outcomes. The trends indicate a shift towards more technologically enhanced educational practices. The insights gained from recent research can inform the development of innovative teaching methods and learning environments. For example, findings on the effectiveness of blended learning and flipped classrooms can lead to broader adoption of these models in traditional educational settings. Furthermore, the increased focus on data-driven approaches can enhance the ability of educators to tailor learning experiences to individual student needs, thereby improving educational outcomes.



Figure 4.7: Annual Scientific Production

Figure 4.8 shows the field plot with three columns labeled DE, TI_TM, and ID at the top. Each column contains a list of keywords related to education and technology. The keywords within each column include DE (Authors' Keywords) define keywords that authors assign to their papers to describe the main topics or concepts covered. As we see Education: "learning," "e-learning," "online learning," "higher education," "students," and more. TI_TM (Title Terms) refers to terms extracted from the title field of publications. The "TI" part stands for "Title," and "TM" stands for "Terms." This field is created by the term Extraction function in Bibliometrix, which extracts significant terms from the title of each document as we see "education technology," "covid-19," "blended learning," "teaching," and others. Lines connect these keywords across the columns, suggesting relationships or connections between these terms. Lastly ID (Keywords Plus) represents "Keywords Plus" or "Index Keywords." These are additional keywords or phrases, often assigned by the database of Scopus. They are typically generated from the titles of cited references and other algorithmically determined relevant terms. Learning systems, engineering education, and curricula. The visualization represents the complex interplay and connections between various concepts in the realm of digital education.





4.6 What Are the Most Common Sources/Journals Publishing Research on Innovation in Online Education? (RQ6)

Figure 4.9 Graph displays various sources related to the relevance of the subject with the horizontal axis representing the number of documents ranging from 0 to 80 and the vertical axis lists the sources. Some of the sources include ACM International Conference Proceeding Series with 69 sources followed by sustainability (Switzerland) with 32 sources with computer and education being 13. Several other sources have varying numbers of documents, with many falling between 20 and 60. The leading sources include the ACM International Conference Proceeding Series, Sustainability (Switzerland), and Computers & Education. ACM International Conference Proceeding Series source is pivotal for sharing innovative research in computer science and its application to education. The ACM conferences provide a platform for presenting new technological advancements and their implications for online education. The peer-review process ensures that only high-quality and impactful research is published, contributing to the reliability and credibility of the findings. Sustainability (Switzerland) journal focuses on sustainable practices, including those in education. It promotes research on the integration of sustainable

development goals (SDGs) into online education, thus influencing policy and practice. Articles undergo rigorous peer review, ensuring the publication of robust and well-founded research. Computers & Education is a leading journal in the field of educational technology, it significantly impacts how educational technologies are developed, implemented, and assessed. The research published here shapes best practices and guides future innovations. Known for its high impact factor, the journal maintains strict standards for publication, ensuring the dissemination of high-quality research. These sources are critical in disseminating cutting-edge research and advancing the field through peer review.





Figure 4.10 is a graph plot with lines that starts high on the left and slopes downward as it moves to the right. This downward slope indicates a decrease in the number of articles as the source rank increases. The y-axis is labeled "Articles" and has values ranging from 0 to 60, and the x-axis is labeled "Source Log (Rank)," although no visible numerical values are present. The shaded area under part of the line graph is labeled "Core Sources" as it represents key sources according to Bradford's Law.

According to Bradford's Law, a small number of core sources contribute significantly to the total number of articles, followed by a larger number of less influential sources. The core sources identified in Figure 4.10 cover a wide range of relevant topics and themes in online education. Concentration in core journals facilitates the development of focused and in-depth research areas, helping to build a comprehensive understanding of specific themes. Researchers and practitioners benefit from the availability of high-quality, peer-reviewed research concentrated in reputable journals. This helps in keeping up with the latest advancements and best practices. Researchers often use this law to understand publication patterns in research fields which is best explained in table 4.2 below.





Table 4.2 shows the column SO (Source): This column represents the names of academic conferences or journals with entries numbered from 1 to 10, indicating the position of each source. Freq (Frequency): The numbers in this column preconference's the frequency of something related to the conferences or journals. Cum Freq (Cumulative Frequency): These cumulative frequencies start at 32 and go up to 231. The shaded area labeled "Core Sources" in figure 4.10 represents key sources according to Bradford's Law and shows that ACM international conference proceedings series rank 1 and INNOVATION P conference proceedings rank 4 with 28 frequencies.

Table 4.2: Core Sources by Bradford's Law

SO	Rank 🝦	Freq 🍦	cumFreq 🝦	Zone 🍦
ACM INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE PROCEEDING SERIES	1	69	69	Zone 1
SUSTAINABILITY (SWITZERLAND)	2	32	101	Zone 1
ASEE ANNUAL CONFERENCE AND EXPOSITION, CONFERENCE PROCEEDINGS	3	30	131	Zone 1
AIP CONFERENCE PROCEEDINGS	4	28	159	Zone 1
INTERNATIONAL JOURNAL OF EMERGING TECHNOLOGIES IN LEARNING	5	28	187	Zone 1
EDUCATION AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES	6	24	211	Zone 1
JOURNAL OF PHYSICS: CONFERENCE SERIES	7	24	235	Zone 1
EDUCATION SCIENCES	8	23	258	Zone 1
PROCEEDINGS - FRONTIERS IN EDUCATION CONFERENCE, FIE	9	23	281	Zone 1
PROCEEDINGS OF THE INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE ON E-LEARNING, ICEL	10	20	301	Zone 1

4.7 What Are the Emerging Trends and Technology Surrounding Innovation in Online Education? (RQ7)

Figure 4.11 shows a Treemap that represents various categories and their corresponding percentages. Each branch of the tree is represented as a rectangle, which is then tiled with smaller rectangles representing sub-branches. The size of each rectangle is proportional to a specified dimension of the data (in this case, percentages).

The largest rectangle is labeled "computer-aided instruction" and occupies 20% of the total area. Other significant categories include: "Coronavirus disease 2019" (4%), "virtual reality" (1%), and "interdisciplinary curriculum" (5%). Smaller rectangles represent terms like: "Learning system," "Active methodologies," and "Computer technology." The color coding in each category has its own unique color for easy distinction and quick understanding of the distribution or allocation of certain resources or frequencies. Future studies can focus on developing more advanced analytics tools, ensuring data privacy and security, and exploring the integration of learning analytics with other educational technologies.



Figure 4.11: Treemap Application

Figure 4.12 shows the Trend topics with the x-axis representing the term frequency, ranging from 0 to 250 and the y-axis lists different topics. Each topic has dots corresponding to different years, showing the frequency of each term over time.

Prominent Topics is labeled "augmented reality" with a frequency under 50, informatization is at the range 50 and is pretty gaining grounds. Other topics with over 50 frequencies are metaverse, digital skills less than 50, and program evaluation within the years 2018 till date. The line shows when this term came into existence and how far it's gone and used. Potential barriers and challenges will be to be able to adopt this technology in classrooms through computer aided systems which may sometimes be slow and not embraced by all students.

Figure 4.12: Trend Topic



Figure 4.13 is a graph that shows the co-occurrence consisting of nodes (circles) and edges (lines) connecting them. Each node represents a different concept or topic related to computer-aided instruction. The size and color of each node indicates its importance or frequency within the network.

The red node on computer-aided instruction as this node has many connections to other nodes, suggesting it is a key concept in this field. Other significant nodes connected to this node are "innovation education", "ict", and "blended learning". Smaller Nodes include ("Virtual Classroom," "augmented reality," virtual reality) as such the layout of the network suggests relationships between different concepts. There are other clusters such as blended learning with nodes such as ict between innovation in education and MOOC, student satisfaction and remote learning, and technology acceptance model, virtual reality, augmented reality. Online education and blended learning are prominent nodes in the network, indicating their central role in recent research. These technologies are frequently associated with personalized learning, adaptive systems, and data analytics. The integration of Online education and blended learning is accelerating, driven by their ability to provide customized learning experiences and improve student outcomes through data-driven insights. VR and AR are emerging as influential technologies in the network, associated with immersive learning and interactive experiences. The application of VR and AR in online education is expanding, offering new ways to engage students and enhance the learning experience through simulated environments.



Figure 4.13: Co-Occurrence Network

Figure 4.14 is divided into four quadrants. The vertical axis represents the Developmental Degree, ranging from Emerging Themes at the bottom to Motor Themes at the top. The horizontal axis represents Relevance Degree (Centrality), with Basic Themes on the left and Niche Themes on the right.

Bottom Left (Basic and Emerging Themes): Contains the phrase "assessment." Represents fundamental themes that are still emerging. Bottom Right (Niche Emerging Themes): Includes phrases like "internet," "massive open online courses," and "emergency remote teaching." These themes are specialized and emerging. Top Left (Basic Motor Themes): Features terms like "virtual reality," "digital learning," and "automated teaching." These are foundational concepts with established relevance. Top Right (Niche Motor Themes): Contains advanced topics such as "big data," "disruptive innovation," "Innovation analytics," and "machine learning." These themes are specialized and highly relevant. The motor themes are connected through their shared focus on leveraging technology to enhance educational outcomes. AI and ML intersect with personalized learning and learning analytics, creating a cohesive research area aimed at improving student experiences and performance. Basic themes connect through their foundational role in enabling online education. Online learning platforms and MOOCs support the implementation of more advanced themes, providing the necessary infrastructure. Niche themes, though less central, connect through their application of specialized technologies to address specific educational challenges, complementing the broader themes.

The evolution of these themes reflects the advancements in technology and changing educational needs. Motor themes have evolved rapidly with technological progress, becoming more sophisticated and effective. Basic themes have also evolved but at a steadier pace, continuously improving and adapting to support the broader integration of new innovations. Emerging themes represent the frontier of research, where new ideas and technologies are being explored. Declining themes show how the field has moved past older methods in favor of more effective approaches.

Motor themes are highly relevant due to their significant impact on the field and potential for future development. They are central to the ongoing transformation of online education. Basic themes remain relevant as they underpin the field, providing the essential infrastructure and practices necessary for more advanced innovations. Niche themes are relevant within their specific contexts, offering targeted solutions and contributing to the field's diversity. Emerging themes hold potential for future relevance as they develop, while declining themes serve as a reminder of the field's evolution and the need to continually innovate.

Figure 4.14: Thematic Map



Relevance degree (Centrality)



CHAPTER 5 DISCUSSION & CONCLUSION

In this study we used bibliometrics analysis SCOPUS-indexed articles published between 2006 to 2024 to show the role of innovation in driven online education, to discover trends enhancing our understanding of the intelligent structure of the research field. This chapter explains the summary of the key findings 5.1, implication and recommendation 5.2, limitation of the research 5.3, future research and next steps for 5.4, and conclusion 5.5.

5.1 Summary of the Key Findings

Firstly, it appears that the study of innovation in online education is experiencing rapid growth, with authors consistently publishing new articles and conducting follow-up research on this topic, leading to high production rates each year. This trend is evidenced by the significant number of global citations, particularly the 627 citations in the journal Computer Education, indicating the increasing relevance and impact of this field. In Figure 4.7, we observed a notable rise in the number of publications over recent years. This growth signifies a heightened interest and recognition of the importance of innovation in online education. The frequent occurrence of keywords such as "computer-aided instruction," mentioned by 3426 authors, highlights the central themes driving this research. Additionally, the evolution of keywords has led to the prominence of terms like "blended learning," "learning media," and "MOOC," reflecting the dynamic nature of the field and the continuous integration of new educational technologies and methodologies. These trends indicate a collective effort within the academic community to explore and enhance the role of innovation in online education. The high citation rates further validate the impact of this research, suggesting that findings in this field are being widely recognized and applied, thereby contributing to the advancement of educational practices and policies globally.

Secondly, to bring more understanding why innovation is involved in online education, many develop countries are highly behind finding out ways of making this get better with China, USA, Singapore, UK, and Germany pushing impactful collaboration worldwide. University in Indonesia, Australia, and USA are one of the most relevant when it comes to affiliation promoting STEM education and digital learning, along with initiatives like the EdTech program, create a conducive environment for innovation in online education. With annual scientific production on articles getting as high as 400 and has been on a steady rise since 2007 but experience a huge scale during the Covid 19 emergency all pointing to the fact that that was the only means of communication and teaching between students and teachers since everything went online as such these authors were interested in education computing.

Lastly, from the treemap, we can see that interdisciplinary curriculum, education computing, learning systems, and online systems are words that are highly discussed as trends and technology that should be considered when delving into this study. The application and trend needed for these to happen are digital skills, computing technology, educational measurement, and electronic learning skills are needed for to blend in. The technologies and application though are mostly computer Innovation aided instructions there is need for other connections into this system which are virtual classroom, mobile learning, simulation, program evaluation, and educational measurement.

In summary, innovation's impact on online education is substantial and rapidly growing, with collaboration across countries and universities driving advancements. Researchers emphasize relevant terms and explore various technologies to enhance learning experiences.

THE CREATIVE UNIVERSITY

5.2 Implications and Recommendations

The biggest implication is that its innovation will bring about educational Transformation with the growing interest in innovation for online education suggests that institutions and educators recognize its potential to transform learning experiences. Implementing innovation effectively can lead to personalized learning, adaptive assessments, and improved student outcomes.

As such, institutions should invest in training educators to effectively use innovation tools in online education. Regular workshops and seminars focused on the latest innovations in online education, including hands-on sessions for educators to practice using new tools, also Flexible, self-paced online courses and live webinars that cover various aspects of educational technology and innovative teaching methods. Establishing peer learning groups and mentoring programs where experienced educators can share best practices and provide guidance on the effective use of innovative tools. Faculty members need to understand innovation's capabilities, ethical considerations, and best practices. Ensuring that institutions have the necessary infrastructure to support advanced technologies, including high-speed internet, updated hardware, and software. Utilizing adaptive learning technologies to tailor educational experiences to individual student needs, improving engagement and outcomes. Providing robust technical support to assist educators and students with the integration and use of new technologies. Incorporating interactive tools such as virtual labs, simulations, and gamified learning platforms to make learning more engaging and effective. This includes help desks, on-site technicians, and online support resources. As innovative systems collect and analyze student data, privacy and security measures are crucial, so institutions must adhere to regulations and protect sensitive information. Also, innovation should enhance pedagogy, not replace it by exploring how innovation can personalize learning, provide timely feedback, and identify at-risk students because the successful integration of innovation in education requires a balanced approach, considering both technological advancements and pedagogical principles.

5.3 Limitations of the Research

Firstly, the data was collected only from Scopus which may limit the comprehensiveness of the study as it excludes other academic databases such as Web of Science, Google Scholar, and PubMed. This exclusion could result in missing relevant studies and perspectives, especially those published in different regions or fields. This didn't consider other academic data base. Secondly, the data was analyzed through Biblioshiny as the only tool, so reliability and validity are questionable to an extent. Thirdly, just secondary data was used to analyze this study. This approach might overlook recent and ongoing research that has not yet been indexed in Scopus. Additionally, secondary data might not capture the nuances and context that primary data collection methods could provide.

5.4 Future Research and Next Steps

Exploring Innovation-Driven Pedagogies by investigating how innovation can enhance teaching and learning processes. Explore adaptive learning systems, personalized content delivery, and intelligent tutoring systems. Study the impact of innovation on student engagement, motivation, and retention rates. Ethical and Privacy Considerations by conducting research on the ethical implications of innovation in education. Address issues related to data privacy which is very critical as users are really worried who has accessed to their data and what they do with it, bias, and transparency. Develop guidelines for responsible innovation implementation, ensuring fairness and equity.

Longitudinal studies to track the long-term effects of innovation interventions in education. Universities and research institutions can create interdisciplinary research centers or networks to facilitate these collaborations. Understand how innovation evolves over time and its impact on educational outcomes. Interdisciplinary connection to foster collaboration between computer scientists, educators, psychologists, and domain experts. Interdisciplinary teams can design effective innovation solutions that align with educational goals. Teacher Professional Development by providing training and support for educators to integrate innovation tools effectively. Empower teachers to use innovation for personalized instruction and assessment.

Assessment and Evaluation Metrics to develop robust metrics to evaluate innovation -driven educational interventions. Consider both quantitative (e.g., learning outcomes, engagement) and qualitative (e.g., student experiences) measures. Hybrid Learning Models that combine innovation -driven online learning with traditional classroom instruction. Understand how to optimize the blend for diverse student populations. Student-Centric Approaches by exploring innovative solutions that empower students. For example, Innovation-driven chatbots can provide instant support, answer questions, and guide learners through their educational journey. Real-World Implementation Studies by collaborating with educational institutions to implement innovation tools in real-world settings. Evaluate their effectiveness, scalability, and sustainability. Addressing Technological Gaps by investigating challenges related to infrastructure, connectivity, and access. Ensure that innovation benefits reach all learners, regardless of socioeconomic status.

5.5 Concluding Remarks

Innovation should enhance pedagogy, not replace it. By exploring how innovation can personalize learning, provide timely feedback, and identify at-risk students, the successful integration of innovation in education requires a balanced approach, considering both technological advancements and pedagogical principles. Policymakers and institutions can leverage these insights to formulate policies that support the integration of innovative technologies while addressing potential challenges.



BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Akinsola, G. D., Awosusi, A. A., Kirikkaleli, D., Umarbeyli, S., Adeshola, I., & Adebayo, T. S. (2022). Ecological footprint, public-private partnership investment in energy, and financial development in Brazil: a gradual shift causality approach. *Environmental Science and Pollution Research*, 29(7), 10077-10090.
- Anderson, T. (Ed.). (2008). *The theory and practice of online learning*. athabasca university press.
- Aria, M. & Cuccurullo, C. (2017) bibliometrix: An R-tool for comprehensive science mapping analysis, Journal of Informetrics, 11(4), *pp 959-975, Elsevier*.
- Bates, A. W. (2015). *Teaching in a digital age: Guidelines for designing teaching and learning*. BCcampus.
- Christensen, C. M. (1997). Marketing strategy: learning by doing. *Harvard business* review, 75(6), 141-151.
- Gül, M. D., & Ayık, Z. (2023). Enrichment studies in gifted education: a bibliometric analysis with RStudio. *Participatory Educational Research*, 10(3), 266-284.
- Guleria, D., & Kaur, G. (2021). Bibliometric analysis of ecopreneurship using VOSviewer and RStudio Bibliometrix, 1989–2019. *Library Hi Tech*, 39(4), 1001-1024.
- Gulson, K. N. (2024). World yearbook of education 2024: digitalisation of education in.
- Harzing, A.W. (2007) Publish or Perish
- Holmberg, B., Hrsg. Bernath, & Busch, F. W. (2005). *The evolution, principles and practices of distance education* (Vol. 11). Oldenburg: Bibliotheks-und Informationssystem der Universität Oldenburg.
- Hrastinski, S. (2008). Asynchronous and synchronous e-learning. *Educause quarterly*, *31*(4), 51-55.
- Jurafsky, D., & Martin, J. H. (2018). Speech and language processing (draft). Chapter A: Hidden Markov Models (Draft of September 11, 2018). Retrieved March, 19(2019), 59.

- Keller, J. M. (2017). "Aaptive Learning in Practice: Knewton's Impact on Education".Journal of Educational Technology Systems, 45(4), 523-545.
- Koedinger, K. R., & Corbett, A. (2006). *Cognitive tutors: Technology bringing learning sciences to the classroom.* na.
- McCarthy, J., Minsky, M. L., Rochester, N., & Shannon, C. E. (2006). A proposal for the dartmouth summer research project on artificial intelligence, august 31, 1955. AI magazine, 27(4), 12-12.
- Mitchell, T. M., & Learning, M. (1997). Mcgraw-hill science. *Engineering/Math*, *1*, 27.
- Mulgan, T. (2016). Superintelligence: Paths, dangers, strategies.
- Newell, A., & Simon, H. A. (1956). "The Logic Theory Machine: A Complex Information Processing System". IRE Transactions on Information Theory, 2(3), 61-79.
- Page, L. C., & Gehlbach, H. (2017). "How an Artificially Intelligent Virtual Assistant Helps Students Navigate the Road to College". AERA Open, 3(4), 1-12.
- Pappano, L. (2012). The Year of the MOOC. The New York Times, 2(12), 2012.
- Persson, O., Glänzel, W., & Danell, R. (2009). Inflationary bibliometric values: The role of scientific collaboration and the need for relative indicators in evaluative studies. Scientometrics, 78(3), 651-657.
- Peters, O. (2008). *Learning and Teaching in Distance Education: Analyses and Interpretations from an International Perspective*. London: Routledge.
- Pritchard, A. (1969). Statistical bibliography or bibliometrics? *Journal of Documentation*, 25(4), 348-349.
- Rathee, V., & Mittal, P. (2024). Employability skills among work ready professionals in higher education: mapping the field through bibliometric analysis with R studio. Higher Education, Skills and Work-Based Learning.
- Russell, S., & Norvig, P. (2005). AI a modern approach. Learning, 2(3), 4.
- Siciliano, B., & Khatib, O. (2016). Robotics and the Handbook. In Springer Handbook of Robotics (pp. 1-6). Cham: Springer International Publishing.
- Siemens, G., & Long, P. (2011). Penetrating the fog: Analytics in learning and education. *EDUCAUSE review*, 46(5), 30.

Szeliski, R. (2022). Computer vision: algorithms and applications. Springer Nature.

- Tanveer, M., Richhariya, B., Khan, R. U., Rashid, A. H., Khanna, P., Prasad, M., & Lin, C. T. (2020). Machine learning techniques for the diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease: A review. ACM Transactions on Multimedia Computing, Communications, and Applications (TOMM), 16(1s), 1-35.
- Thwe, W. P., & Kalman, A. (2024). Lifelong learning in the educational setting: A systematic literature review. The Asia-Pacific Education Researcher, 33(2), 407-417.
- Van Eck, N. J., & Waltman, L. (2018). VOSviewer: A computer program for bibliometric mapping. In Proceedings of Issi 2009-12th International Conference of the International Society for Scientometrics and Informetrics (Vol. 2, pp. 886-897).
- Van Meer, A. (2003). "PLATO: From Computer-Based Education to Corporate Social Responsibility". *Interactive Learning Environments*, 11(2), 111-124.
- Watson, W. R., & Watson, S. L. (2007). An argument for clarity: What are learning management systems, what are they not, and what should they become?. *TechTrends*, 51, 28-34.
- Yashchenko, V. (2014, August). Artificial intelligence theory (Basic concepts). In 2014 Science and Information Conference (pp. 473-480). IEEE.
- Zakaria, A. A., Azni, A. H., Ridzuan, F., Zakaria, N. H., & Daud, M. (2023).
 Systematic literature review: trend analysis on the design of lightweight block cipher. *Journal of King Saud University-Computer and Information Sciences*, 35(5), 101550.
- Zupic, I., & Čater, T. (2015). Bibliometric methods in management and organization. *Organizational research methods*, *18*(3), 429-472.

BIODATA

Name-Last Name:

Desheng Du

Email:

desheng.du@bumail.net

Education Background:

Bachelor of Business Administration

Work Experience:

Assistant Product Manager at Suzhou Jinchi Information Technology Co., LTD

BANGKOK UNIVERSITY THE CREATIVE UNIVERSITY